


























































































 

 

MICHIGAN BUREAU  OF ELECTIONS 
R ICHARD H.  AUSTIN BUILDING ●  1ST FLOOR  ●  430  W. ALLEGAN ●  LANSING,  MICHIGAN 48918 

M i chigan .gov /E lec t i ons  ●  ( 517)  335-3234 

January 11, 2023 

Michael Jones 

23740 Lexington Ave 

Eastpointe, MI 48021  

 

 

Re: Schonert v. Jones  

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2022 – 12 – 224 – 226  

 

Dear Mr. Jones:  

 

The Department of State (Department) has received a formal complaint filed against you by 

Matthew Schonert alleging that you violated the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA or 

Act). Specifically, the complaint alleges that you failed to file required information concerning a 

fundraiser you held on October 10, 2021. A copy of the complaint is included with this notice. 

 

The MCFA requires that candidates and committees record the full name, street address, amount 

contributed, and date of contribution for each individual from whom contributions are received. 

MCL 169.226(1)(e). Additionally, the following information regarding each fundraising event 

must be included in the report:  

 

• The type of event, date held, address and name, if any, of the place where the activity was 

held, and approximate number of individuals participating or in attendance. 

• The total amount of all contributions. 

• The gross receipts of the fundraising event. 

• The expenditures incident to the event.  

MCL 169.226(1)(d).  

 

The purpose of this letter is to inform you of the Department’s examination of these matters and 

your right to respond to the allegations before the Department proceeds further. It is important to 

understand that the Department is neither making this complaint nor accepting the allegations as 

true. The investigation and resolution of this complaint is governed by section 15 of the Act and 

the corresponding administrative rules, R 169.51 et seq. An explanation of the process is 

included in the enclosed guidebook. 

 

If you wish to file a written response to this complaint, you are required to do so within 15 

business days of the date of this letter. Your response may include any written statement or 

additional documentary evidence you wish to submit. Materials may be emailed to 
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BOERegulatory@michigan.gov or mailed to the Department of State, Bureau of Elections, 

Richard H. Austin Building, 1st Floor, 430 West Allegan Street, Lansing, Michigan 48918. If you 

fail to submit a response, the Department will render a decision based on the evidence furnished 

by the complainant. 

 

A copy of your answer will be provided to Mr. Schonert, who will have an opportunity to submit 

a rebuttal statement to the Department. After reviewing the statements and materials provided by 

the parties, the Department will determine whether “there may be reason to believe that a 

violation of [the MCFA] has occurred [.]” MCL 169.215(10). Note that the Department’s 

enforcement powers include the possibility of entering a conciliation agreement, conducting an 

administrative hearing, or referring this matter to the Attorney General for enforcement. 

 

If you have any questions concerning this matter, you may contact the Regulatory Section of the 

Bureau of Elections at BOERegulatory@michigan.gov. 

  

Sincerely, 

 

Regulatory Section 
                                                                                                Bureau of Elections 

                                                                                                Michigan Department of State 

Enclosure 

c: Matthew Schonert  











 

 

MICHIGAN BUREAU  OF ELECTIONS 
R ICHARD H.  AUSTIN BUILDING ●  1ST FLOOR  ●  430  W. ALLEGAN ●  LANSING,  MICHIGAN 48918 

M i chigan .gov /E lec t i ons  ●  ( 517)  335-3234 

January 19, 2023 

Matthew Ross Schonert 

22050 Boulder Ave 

Eastpointe, MI 48021   

 

Via email     

 

Re: Schonert v. Jones 

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2022-12-224-226 

 

Dear Mr. Schonert: 

 

The Department of State received a response from Michael Jones to the complaint you filed 

against him alleging a violation of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act, 1976 P.A. 388, MCL 

169.201 et seq. A copy of the response is provided as an enclosure with this letter. 

 

You may file a rebuttal statement after reviewing the enclosed response. If you elect to file a 

rebuttal statement, you are required to do so within 10 business days of the date of this letter. The 

rebuttal statement may be emailed to BOERegulatory@Michigan.gov or mailed to the 

Department of State, Bureau of Elections, Richard H. Austin Building, 1st Floor, 430 West 

Allegan Street, Lansing, Michigan 48918.  

  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Regulatory Section 

                                                                                                Bureau of Elections 

                                                                                                Michigan Department of State 

 

 

c: Michael Jones 

 

 

 

mailto:BOERegulatory@Michigan.gov
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March 9, 2023 
 
Michael Jones 
23740 Lexington Ave 
Eastpointe, MI 48021 

Re: Schonert v. Jones 
 Campaign Finance Complaint No. 2022-12-224-26 

Dear Michael Jones: 

The Michigan Department of State (Department) has finished investigating the campaign finance 
complaint filed against you by Matthew Schonert on December 15, 2022. The complaint alleges 
you violated the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA or Act) by failing to report 
contributions you received at a fundraiser. 
 
The complaint alleges that you held a fundraiser on October 10, 2021 and failed to report on the 
pre-election campaign statement the fundraising event or any amount of contributions received. 
 
By letter dated January 18, 2023, you responded to the complaint and indicated that it was an 
oversight to not specifically state there were only two contributions at issue and neither was 
received at the fundraiser.   
 
Mr. Schonert responded to the complaint on January 20, 2023 and did not raise new arguments, 
but responded to your allegations that Facebook should not be used as evidence.  He further 
argued that the Bureau has the authority to investigate even after the committee is dissolved. 
 
The MCFA requires that candidates and committees record the full name, street address, amount 
contributed, and date of contribution for each individual from whom contributions are received. 
MCL 169.226(1)(e). 
 
Here, the Department has reviewed the complaint and determines that the evidence is insufficient 
to conclude that a potential violation of the Act has occurred.  In your response, you indicate that 
the contributions received were disclosed on the pre-election campaign report filed with the 
Macomb County Clerk’s Office, and the Department has verified this information.  Specifically, 
the two contributions at issue were both reported at the time.  Further, the report demonstrates 
that the contribution given by Mark Holmes was given on the day after the fundraiser.  In fact, 
review of your report demonstrates that there was only one contribution received on the same 
date as the fundraiser, but without more, there’s insufficient evidence to show that this 
contribution was received at the fundraiser.  Regardless, the disclosure was present the entire 
time, and without more, there’s no evidence demonstrating that there were missing contributions. 
 

http://www.michigan.gov/sos
https://campaignfinance.us/docs.macomb.mi/470889386.PDF
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Accordingly, the Department dismisses the complaint as there is insufficient evidence to 
determine that there may be reason to believe a potential violation of the Act has occurred and 
will take no further action. 
 

Sincerely, 

  
Adam Fracassi, Regulatory Manager  
Regulatory Division  
Bureau of Elections  
Michigan Department of State 
 
 

c: Matthew Schonert 
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